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Rebecca Murray

From: Jenny Lapham
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 12:14 p.m.
To:
Subject: FW: Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 
Attachments: NTF-2020-187 - cumberland Street.pdf; NTF-2020-188 - Moray Place.pdf; ABA2008 - 1060   Erect 

Bus shelter. (958921).pdf; RMA20061172-76_-_Decision_(670367).pdf; ABA63891 Application - 
Erect Bus Shelter (660745).pdf; AAB1967 16219 - Erect bus shelter, plan (Dunedin CIty Council) 
(4303022).pdf; RMA20061172-76_-_Decision_(670367 ).pdf

Dear   
 
Please find below and attached a response to your latest series of questions in relation to bus shelters. 
 
Regards 
 
Jennifer 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From:    
Date: 3/12/20 17:11 (GMT+12:00)  
To: Jenny Lapham <Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz>, "McLeod, Neil" <neil.mcleod@dcc.govt.nz>  
Cc: "NIC. JEPSON@dcc. govt. nz" <NIC.JEPSON@dcc.govt.nz>, Paul Henderson <Paul.Henderson@dcc.govt.nz>  
Subject: RE: FW: Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987  
 
Hi,  
 
Thank you for getting back to me. 
 
Can you confirm what action has been taken by council to ensure public safety and compliance since becoming 
aware of this seeming illegal building work at the following sites: 

 82 Signal Hill Road ‐ consented but without appropriate assessment  

As previously advised a resource consent is not required under the 2006 District Plan (as a result of Plan 
Change 10). No action has been taken as we do not consider there to be an issue that needs to be addressed 
because they are generally open sided structures on road reserve and they are not used for storage. 
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 All other shelters on consent ABA‐2012‐660 as the consent was incorrectly issued without fully 
demonstrating compliance with the NZBC. The consent authority did not have reasonable grounds to accept 
that these structures met the requirements relating to fire spread.  

No action has been taken as we do not consider there to be an issue that needs to be addressed because 
they are generally open sided structures on road reserve and they are not used for storage. 

 Cumberland street backing onto Countdown  
 (309 Cumberland Street in Cumberland Street ‐ SH1). The DCC Transportation Department was not able to 

find a record of a building permit/consent. Notice to Fix TF‐ 2020‐187 has been issued (copy attached). 

 

 

 

 

 Corner of Signal Hill & Lovelock Ave  

(Building Permit in 1967 (H‐1967‐16219) – Copy Attached . No action has been taken as we do not consider 
there to be an issue that needs to be addressed because they are generally open sided structures on road 
reserve and they are not used for storage.  
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  

 

Has any review been stated to determine other possible illegal bus shelters? 
Yes. Transportation Planning has been contacted and will look at the issue in 2021. It would appear that, due to staff 
changes, there has been a breakdown in communication within the department so it is possible that bus shelters 
have been constructed without a building consent or schedule 1 exemption. The Building Solutions Unit will provide 
training to the transportation maintenance team in relation to Schedule 1 of the Building Act 2004. Additional 
notices to fix may be issued, pending the review. 
 
 
The bus shelter I requested info on isn't on Leith street but that is the address of the property it backs onto. The 
shelter is on Castle Street outside Pioneer energy.  
 
(193 Castle Street) Building Consent ABA‐2008‐1060 – Copy attached. No action has been taken as we do not 
consider there to be an issue that needs to be addressed because they are generally open sided structures on road 
reserve and they are not used for storage. 
 
 

 
 
 
As well as the (unpermitted) Cumberland street bus shelter there is a new one against Countdown on Moray Place 
which I understand wasn't part of the original bus hub. 
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 (309 Cumberland Street in Moray Place). The DCC Transportation Department was not able to provide 
evidence that a building consent had been obtained for this work. A Notice to Fix‐2020‐188 has been issued 
(copy attached). 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Did you have any luck with the shelter at the top of Signal Hill Road by the bus turn around? 
 

 (160 Signal Hill Road. RMA‐2006‐370929 and ABA‐2006‐314604) – Copies attached. No action has been 
taken as we do not consider there to be an issue that needs to be addressed because they are generally 
open sided structures on road reserve and they are not used for storage 
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I trust this answers your questions. 
 
Regards 
 
Jenny 
 
 

Jennifer Lapham 
Governance Support Officer 
Civic  

P 03 477 4000 | E Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz  
Dunedin City Council, 50 The Octagon, Dunedin 
PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054 
New Zealand 
www.dunedin.govt.nz 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Jenny Lapham <Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz>  
Date: 25/11/20 16:01 (GMT+12:00)  
To:    
Subject: FW: Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987  
 

 

Dear   

 

I refer to your LGOIMA requests relating to Bus Shelters and respond as follows: 

 

Bus Shelters – Signal Hill Road 

 

You have asked for the permits for these two shelters one being at 82 Signal Hill Road and the other on the corner of 
Lovelock Ave and Signal Hill Road. I understand that you have already been sent a copy of the building consent for 
82 Signal Hill Road, however I have attached a copy of the consent for your information. 

 

In regards to the shelter on the corner of Lovelock Avenue and Signal Hill Road, I note that in his e‐mail to you on 28 
August 2020 the Principal Advisor Building Solution (Neil McLeod) advised you that he had been unable to find any 
record of a building consent/permit for this shelter, but would pass your request to the Transport Department. To 
date we have been unable to find any information relating to this shelter.  

 

Bus Shelter which backs onto Countdown 
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There are a number of bus shelters backing onto the Countdown site. Attached is the decision letter regarding the 
bus hub. If you are referring to the bus shelter on Cumberland Street, having searched our records we have been 
unable to locate any information on this shelter. 

 

 

46 Leith Street 

 

You have asked for information relating to the bus shelter that backs on to 46 Leith Street. We have been unable to 
locate the bus shelter you are referring to in Leith Street.  

 

 

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

 

 

 

  
 

  
 

V   
  

 

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or 
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..  

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐From: Jenny Lapham <Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz> Date: 25/11/20 16:01 
(GMT+12:00) To:   Subject: FW: Local 
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Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987  
 
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
82 
Signal Hill Road, however I have attached a copy of the consent for your information. 
 
In regards to the shelter on the corner of Lovelock Avenue and Signal Hill Road, I note that in his e‐mail to you on 28 
August 2020 the Principal Advisor Building Solution (Neil McLeod) advised you that he had been unable to find any 
record 
of a building consent/permit for this shelter, but would pass your request to the Transport Department. To date we 
have been unable to find any information relating to this shelter. 
 
 
Bus Shelter which backs onto Countdown 
 
There are a number of bus shelters backing onto the Countdown site. Attached is the decision letter regarding the 
bus hub. If you are referring to the bus shelter on Cumberland Street, having searched our records we have been 
unable to 
locate any information on this shelter. 
 
 
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
P 
03 477 4000  
| E Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz 
 
Dunedin City Council, 50 The Octagon, Dunedin 
PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054 
New Zealand 
www.dunedin.govt.nz 
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If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further 
use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited.. 















  

    
 

        

     

       

    

         
  

    
            

  
 

                               
                                   

                                       

 

  

   

     

  

      

   

      

       

   
 

     

 

    

      
 

    
  

   
      
           

 

      

      

   

          

            

          

       

  

    
  

 

  

   

 

 

    

    

  

    

 

 

      

    

 

          

    

     

         

         

       

     

         
           

    
        

 

      

     

     

               

  

         
            

       

                 

             

             



  

                

     

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

               

              

 

              

           

   

                       

                      

          

   

 

   

   
    

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
  

  

  

 

  

          
 

     

   

     
     

    

    

     

  

    



        

          

  
 

                                      

  
  
  

   
  
  

    
  
  

    
  
  

    
  
  

  
   
  

   
  
  

   
   

  

  
 

 

   
  
  

   
  
  

   
   

  

   
  
  

   
   

  

   
  
  

   
   

  

   
  
  

   
  
  

  
  
  



    

            

         

       

          

             

                

  

    

          

 

  

      

  

   

      

        

 

 

     

  

  

 

       

  

  

 

      

  

     

 

 

    

 

     

        

      

       

 

        

             

     



   

               

                  

       

            

      

                    

    

                   
          

                 

  
 

 

 

                   
  

   

        

  

     

         

          

      

                

   

      

               

                
                

   

   

             

            

        

    

                  
        

                
                  

    



        

          

   

                     
             

    

 
  
  

  

  
  

  

    

 
  

  

 
  

  

 
  
  

  

    
  

  

 
  
  

  

   
  

  

  
  

  

   
  

  

     
  

  

   
  

  

   
  

  

    
  

  

   
  

  

   
  

  

   

   
 

   
 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  

   
    



          

          

                  

  

                         
             

         

               
           

      
   

   

     
 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

      
         

  
     

   

 
   

      

      
     

     

    

      

    

    

 

   

      

   

   
 

     

 

 
    

   
 

   

 

  
    
 

 

         

 
 

 

 
    

 

     

     
  

 

     

 
     

 

 

 
  

  

 
 

      
 

 
  

   
     

  

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

  

  

 
  

 
   

 

 
 

 
   

        
    

     
     

    

    
     

  

  

 

             

 

 
  

   

   

 
    

  

   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

   

  

  

   
 

 

      

   

   

   

 

     

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

    

  

    

     

   

   

        

 

      

  

       

 

     

     

      

       

    

          

      

        

       
 

  

  

       

         

 

 

 

   



 

 
     

     

 

 

 

     

    

   
  
  
 

  

     

          

      

             
              

            

       

    

      

    

     

       

       

      

        

     
   

   





 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

       
   

  
 

  
 

 
  
  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 
  

 

  
  
  

  

   
 

 

 

 
 

   
 

       

  

 
 

 

 



 

      

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

  

 

   

 
   

 
   

  
   

 
 

  
        

             
 

    
         

         

       

   
  

       
 

    
  

    
   

  

 
    

    

  

 

  
     

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

    

 

                

    

     

             

           
 

         

   

 
 

 

      

          

  
 

 

    
    

 

 

 

 

   
 

     
       

 
        

     
 

 
 

 
 

  

     

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

          

         

       

     

 

 

 

 

  
 

   
           

       
 
 

   
  

 

  
 

 

 
      

    
 

 

     
  
  

 

      

    
     

    
   

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

      

       

      

 

 
 

      

     

 

        
       

           
      

      
 

 

    
 

    

 

 

    

 

 
 

 

  
      

    
 
 

 

   

 

  

 

  

  

    
 

  

  

 

  

      

      
    

        



  

 

    
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

        

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

   

         

 
 

       
 

 

 
    

     

      
       

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

  

 

 

 

 

      

 
 

  

     

 
  

   

    

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
        

          

        

 
 

        

       

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

  

   

 

 

     
 

  

 

 

 

 

 
  

   

   

 

  

 
     

  

 

   

   

  

 

 
  

 

 
  

  

 

 

   

   

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

    

  

  

    

    

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  
 

  

 

   

  
 

  

       

       



 
 
 
 
 
1 February 2007 
 
 
Dunedin City Council Roading Department 
C/ MWH Ltd 
P. O. Box 4 
DUNEDIN 
 
 
Attention: Caroline Van Halderen 
 
 
Dear Caroline 
 
RESOURCE CONSENT APPLICATION:  
 

• RMA20061172 – Opoho Road (opposite No. 67A and B) 
• RMA20061173 – Signal Hill Road (adjacent No. 160)  
• RMA20061174 – Brighton Road (opposite No. 293) 
• RMA20061175 – Reeves Street (cnr Reeves and Kilgour Streets) 
• RMA20061176 – Brockville Road (adjacent No. 108) 

 
Your application for resource consent to erect five bus shelters around Dunedin City at the 
above locations was processed on a non-notified basis in accordance with section 93 and 94 of 
the Resource Management Act 1991.  A Senior Planner considered the application on 1 
February 2007. 
 
I advise that the Council has granted consent to the application. The full text of the decision 
commences on page 4. The consent must be given effect to within five years, in accordance 
with section 125 of the Resource Management Act 1991. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY 

Resource consent is sought to erect bus shelters at the above locations.  The location of each 
bus shelter is discussed below: 
 

• Opoho Road:  The shelter will be located at the city bound bus stop, opposite 67 A and 
B Opoho Road.  The bus shelter will be placed partly on road reserve and partly within 
the Botanic Garden.   

 
• Signal Hill Road:  The shelter will be located on the road reserve at the bus 

roundabout, adjacent to 160 Signal Hill Road.  The shelter will be placed on the 
footpath against the low garden wall, alongside the bus stop. 

• Brighton Road, Waldronville:  The shelter will be located at the city bound bus stop in 
Brighton Road, south of Wavy Knowes Drive (opposite 293 Brighton Road).  The 
shelter will be placed on road reserve with the frontage set back 3.5 m from the road 
edge.  The structure will be placed on a concrete slab and low retaining nib wall.  

 
• Reeves Street, Roseneath:  The shelter will be located at the bus stop on the corner of 

Reeves Street and Kilgour Street.  The structure will be placed with the frontage onto 
the footpath.  

 
• Brockville Road:  The shelter will be located at the city bound bus stop, adjacent to 

108 Brockville Road.  The bus shelter will be placed on road reserve on the existing 
asphalt surface.  

 
The bus shelters are associated with existing bus stops and provide shelter for members of 
the public using the bus service.   
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Brockville Road and Signal Hill Road are both characterised by medium residential 
development within an established residential area.  Brighton Road and Reeves Street are 
within small residential areas surrounded predominately by rural land.  The Reeves Street 
residential area is also adjacent to the Otago Harbour.  Opoho Road is characterised by the 
botanic garden with medium density residential development opposite.  
 
Any actual or potential effects on the environment of allowing this proposal to proceed will be 
no more than minor for the following reasons: 
 
1. Sustainability (Assessment Matter 8.13.1) 

The proposal is consistent with the objectives and policies of the Sustainability section 
of the District Plan.  These seek to maintain and enhance the amenity values of the 
City, to provide for development at an appropriate density to allow the sustainable 
management of the infrastructure, and to protect significant resources.  The proposed 
bus shelters are associated with an existing activity, i.e. a bus stop.  It is considered 
that the proposed activity will have no more than minor adverse effects on the 
respective areas.  
 

2. Bulk and Location of the Structure (Assessment Matter 8.13.3) 

The bus shelters are of a standard design, with a maximum height of 2.6 m, a width of 
1.6 m, and a length of 3 m.  Each shelter will occupy an area of approximately 5 m2.   
 
The bus shelters will be in a position that least affects the neighbouring property.  
Factors such as obscuring the view, overshadowing, vegetation and safe traffic 
movement were considered when selecting the positions.  The shelters will not impede 
the passage of pedestrians.  
 
Bus shelters are an anticipated feature within the residential zone.  The activity is well 
established at the proposed locations, and bus shelters are already used widely 
throughout the City.  
 
I consider that the bulk and location of the proposed bus shelters will have no adverse 
effects on the wider environment surrounding the site. 

 
3. Amenity Values and Character, Design and Appearance (Assessment Matters 8.13.5 & 

8.13.6)  

The proposed bus shelters are associated with existing bus stops and are mostly 
within road reserve.  Two of the proposed shelters will adjoin residential properties, at 
160 Signal Hill Road and 108 Brockville Road.  The owners/occupiers of these 
properties have given written consent to the proposal, and accordingly, pursuant to 
section 104(3)(b) of the Resource Management Act 1991, the Council must not have 
regard to any effects on these parties.  
 
In all other instances the bus shelters will be located opposite existing residential 
properties.  The structures will not impact on the existing residential amenity, due to 
their physical separation, bulk and location.  
 
The design of the shelters, whilst uniform, is sympathetic to the existing residential 
amenity and is not considered to impact on the streetscape.  The bus shelters will be 
painted green to blend in with the surrounding environment.  
 
Overall, I consider that the adverse effects on the amenity values and character of the 
wider area will be no more than minor.   

 
4. Transportation (Assessment Matter 18.13.7) 

The application states that the bus shelters are positioned on sites where the safety of 
pedestrians and the visibility of road users will not be affected.  The sites are the most 
practical and efficient positions for the shelters, given that they are sited on road 
reserve (or close to the road reserve).  
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The Planner, Transportation Planning, has considered the application and notes that: 

The view of Transportation Planning is that this proposal will have a positive effect 
on the transportation network by improving the quality of public transport 
provision in the city.  
 

5. Provision for Stormwater, Water and Sewerage (Assessment Matter 8.13.10) 

The Consents Officer, Water and Waste Services, has considered the application and 
notes that: 

This consent does not require any additional water, wastewater or stormwater 
services.  Stormwater from the shelters is to discharge to the kerb and channel.   
 
The location of the bus shelter proposed for the site on Signal Hill Road does not 
cause any implications for access to any water, stormwater and wastewater 
pipelines in these areas.   
 
However, the other bus shelters locations do raise some concerns regarding access 
to water, stormwater or wastewater pipelines for any necessary maintenance 
and/or repairs.   These locations are Brockville Road, Main Road, Opoho Road, 
Brighton Road and Reeves Street.  The shelters at these sites are either very near, 
or located over, some pipelines and would therefore need to be constructed in 
such a way that they could be dismantled in order to provide access to these 
pipelines for any maintenance/repair work.   
 
Water and Waste Services have no other issues with this consent. 

 
Advice Note: 
 
The shelters are to be constructed in such a way that they could be dismantled in 
order to provide access to these pipelines for any maintenance/repair work.  The 
construction of shelters of the type illustrated (type II shelter, MWH drawing dated 
20/12/2005) in the application is considered appropriate. 
 
The DCC may have to remove the shelter in extreme/emergency situations for 
necessary maintenance/repair work for any water, stormwater and wastewater 
pipelines in these areas.   
 
That the DCC will not be liable for any damage if they remove the shelter or any of 
the costs of reinstating a shelter. 
 

6. Other Council Departments 

The proposed bus shelter at Opoho Road (opposite No. 67A and B) will be placed 
partly on road reserve and partly within the Botanic Garden.  The Botanic Garden is 
owned by the Dunedin City Council and administered by Community and Recreation 
Services.  As such approval is required from Community and Recreation Services. 
 
Community and Recreation Services have assessed the application regarding the bus 
shelter at Opoho Road, adjacent to the Botanic Garden, and notes that: 

 
It has been proposed that the shelter will be placed partly within the fringes of the 
Botanic Garden with minimal disruption to the existing vegetation other than some 
trimming and removal of some tussock plants. The shelter will be constructed in 
wood with an iron roof and painted green.  
 
Community and Recreation Services grants permission for the bus shelter to be 
erected provided the following conditions have been met: 
 
a. The exact location of the shelter is agreed to on site with the Botanic Garden 

and Cemeteries Team Leader. 
 



 5 

b. That the shelter is set back enough to ensure that no visibility or safety issues 
will affect pedestrian users of the existing track with regards to crossing Opoho 
Road.  

 
c. Drainage from the roof takes into account the lack of curb and channel in this 

area and directed downhill so no ponding occurs around the shelter. 
 

d. Botanic Garden staff will undertake any trimming back or plant removal 
required. 

 
e. Consultation with the Botanic Garden and Cemeteries Team Leader prior to 

installation is undertaken to ensure all of the above issues have been 
addressed. 

  
CONSENT DECISION 

That pursuant to section 34A(1) and 104B and after having regard to section 104 of the 
Resource Management Act 1991, the Dunedin City Council grants resource consent to the 
discretionary (unrestricted) activity for the installation of a bus shelter at each of the 
following locations: Opoho Road (opposite No. 67 A and B); Signal Hill Road (adjacent No. 
160); Brighton Road (opposite No. 293); Reeves Street (cnr Reeves and Kilgour Streets); 
and, Brockville Road (adjacent No. 108), subject to the following conditions imposed under 
section 108 of the Act: 
 
1. That the proposal shall be constructed/undertaken in general accordance with the 

plans prepared by MWH, entitled ‘Bus Shelter Construction 2005/2006 Type II Bus 
Shelter Design, Job No. Z0611070’ and the associated information submitted with the 
applications RMA20061172-20061176 dated 12 December 2006 and received by 
Council on 13 December 2006. 

 
2. That the conditions attached to Community and Recreation Services approval (refer 

Section 6 under ‘Effects on the Environment’ of this consent) shall be met prior to the 
construction of the bus shelter at Opoho Road. 

 
ADVICE NOTES 

1. In addition to the conditions of a resource consent, the Resource Management Act 
establishes through section 16 and 17 a duty for all persons to avoid unreasonable 
noise, and to avoid, remedy or mitigate any adverse effects created from an activity 
they undertake.  A similar responsibility exists under the Health Act 1956. 

 
2. The shelters shall be constructed in such a way that they could be dismantled in order 

to provide access to water, stormwater or wastewater pipelines for maintenance/repair 
work.  The construction of shelters of the type illustrated (Type II Bus Shelter) in the 
application is considered appropriate. 

 
3. The Dunedin City Council may have to remove the shelter in extreme/emergency 

situations for necessary maintenance/repair work for any water, stormwater and 
wastewater pipelines in these areas.   

 
4. That the Dunedin City Council will not be liable for any damage if they remove the 

shelter or any of the costs of reinstating a shelter. 
 
LAPSING OF CONSENT 

This consent shall lapse after a period of five (5) years from the date of this decision unless 
the consent has been given effect to during this time.  This period may be extended on 
application to the Council pursuant to section 125 of the Resource Management Act 1991. 
 
REASONS 

Effects 

In accordance with section 104(1)(a) of the Resource Management Act 1991, the actual and 
potential adverse effects associated with the proposed activity have been assessed and are 



 6 

outlined above. It is considered that the proposed activity will have no more than minor 
adverse effects on the environment. 
 
District Plan – Objectives and Policies 

In accordance with section 104(1)(b) of the Resource Management Act 1991, the objectives 
and policies of the District Plan were taken into account in assessing the application.  The 
proposal has been assessed against the relevant provisions identified through section 4 
(Sustainability), section 8 (Residential) and section 20 (Transportation). 
 
The proposal is considered to be consistent with the following objectives and policies of the 
District Plan: 
 

• Objective 4.2.1 and Policy 4.3.1 (Sustainability Section) seek to maintain and 
enhance the amenity values of Dunedin. 

 
• Objective 8.2.1 and Policy 8.3.1 (Residential Zones Section) seek to ensure that 

the adverse effects of activities on amenity values and the character of residential 
areas are avoided, remedied or mitigated. 

 
• Objective 20.2.2 and Policy 20.3.4 (Transportation Section) seek to ensure that 

land use activities are undertaken in a manner, which avoids, remedies, or mitigates 
adverse effects on the transportation network. 

 
• Objective 20.2.4 and Policy 20.3.6 (Transportation Section) seek to maintain 

and enhance a safe, efficient and effective transportation network.  
 
COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to comply with any conditions imposed on this resource 
consent prior to and during (as applicable) exercising the resource consent.  Failure to comply 
with the conditions may result in prosecution, the penalties for which are outlined in section 
339 of the Resource Management Act 1991. 
 
BUILDING CONSENT 

This is a resource consent.  A building consent may be required before any work is 
undertaken on the site.  Please check with the Building Control Office, Development Services 
to establish whether or a not a building consent is required. 
 
RIGHTS OF OBJECTION 

In accordance with section 357 of the Resource Management Act 1991, the consent holder 
may object to this decision or any condition within 15 working days of the decision being 
received, by applying in writing to the Dunedin City Council at the following address:  
 

The Chief Executive 
Dunedin City Council  
P O Box 5045 
DUNEDIN 

 
Attention: Senior Planner – Enquiries 1st Floor 

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
Michelle White                         
PLANNER 
 
 



  
    
    

       

    

        

     

    

        
  

       

      
     

     

       
 

  

 

 

    

  

       
 

           

 

     

      

  

      

           

  

  

  

 

 

 

        

           

        
   

         

   

    

          

         

 

      
          

    

  

  

  

  

        

     
               

  

         
           

       
                   

             
             

 

    
        

                                                                   

                                      



  

                

      

  

    

    

    

    

  

 

               

              

 

            

 
           

   

                       

                      

          

   

 

 

 

    

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

     

 
  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 



               

                   

       

            

      

                    

     

                   
          

                 

  

                     
  

   

        

  

     

        

          

       

               

   

      

               

                 
                

   

   

             

            

        

  



        

          

   

                     
             

    

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

  

 

 



        

          

  
                                       

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 



    

           

             

                

  

         

                  

           

         

           

      

             

   

       

   

                   

            

                 

               

  

 

 

 

 

     

  

                  

     

     

                

    

                  

        

                

                  

       

 

        

            



    

    

  

    

    

  

                  

      

              

               

  

                    

               

       

 

    

   

 

       

          

            

             

       

            

  



 
      

    

 

 

 

     

        

     

    

      

 

     

    

    
        

       
   

 

   

  
 
  

  
 

    
      

 

 

     
 

     

 
   

    

  

 

 

       

        

       
   

 
  

     

  

   

       

    
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

    

  

    

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

     

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 
  

     

 

 

    

            

    

       

           

        

         

   

        

     

     

          

         

    

      

 
 

      

  

      

       

    

       

 

     

       

   

  
 

  

 
  

            
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

     

   

 

 

 
 
  

  

 

 
            

          

  
   

 

 

 
    

      
          

       

 
 

      

        

  

 
   

    

 
  

 

      

        

         

 

 

         

          

      

   

 

 

  

  

                  
 
 

  

  

   

 

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 
  

 

 

  

 
  

 

 

  

 

 

 

    

  

  

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

  

     

 
     

 

 
 

  

  

    

    

 

  

    

  

     

 

 

 

  

 
    

 

      

  
  

 

      

     

















 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 
       

 

 

      

    

 

    

 
   
 

  

 

 




